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June 4. 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.,
Concord, NH (CAPBM), Vendor #177203, in the amount of $319,110 for the federal
Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approval for the period July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2026
upon availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

NH Department of Enerev Low Income Weatherization FY 2026

02-52-52-520510-33560000-074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $ 319,110

2) Further request authorization to advance to the vendor $28,069 of the above-referenced
contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant
guidance (10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the
Weatherization Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of
services to clients eligible for the Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical
performance delivering the weatherization program.

The Department is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization
Assistance Program, funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to
weatherize homes to reduce energy consumption and energy costs in eligible low income
households. Priority is given to households that include people who are elderly, disabled, or
children, and households with high energy usage. The Department contracts with New
Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local level.
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The Department estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to New Hampshire will
contribute to the weatherization of approximately 16 homes in the State.

The requested advance of funds will enable CAPBM to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements from the State, and may only be used for allowable program expenses as
detailed in Exhibit C.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

Respectfully submitted,

\

lared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

tifitlcc: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

Department of Energy

1.2 State Agency Address

21 S. Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Action Program Belknap-Meirimack Counties. Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

8 Old Suncook Road, Concord, NH, 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-225-3295

1.6 Account Unit and Class

33560000-074

1.7 Completion Date

06/30/2026

1.8 Price Limitation

$319,110

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Joshua Elliott, Director of Division of Policy and Programs

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-6003

l.ll Contractor Signalu|'e

/TW 1

1. 12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director

1.13 (JtJte Agency ̂ gMra^\ 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Jared S. Chicoine, Commissioner

J.I 5 ^pproval by the N.H. Oepartmeht of A'dministration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

/By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Anomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

5/5/2025

1.17 approval by the-Govemor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New

Hampshire, acting through .the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
' all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
•• the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of fiinds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The

' State shall not be required to transfer funds from any odier account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incun^ed by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. compliance by contractor WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of-federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shalj comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take .affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall.ensure any subcontractors
comply .with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial'
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawflil or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Ser\'ices satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or rnore, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending ail parents to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slate may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.ll. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fiffeeh
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Coritrol shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" riieans (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction, or series of related transactions in '
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of ail or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State. *
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all*subcontracts and ■'
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions '
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fi nes, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable,
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Stale of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certiflcaiefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter-281-A ("Workers'
Compensation ').
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 28i-A, Contractor shall maintain,.and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers* Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or- any subcontractor or employee of'
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers" Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under.this Agreement.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only af^er approval of such amendment, waiver or"
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the

circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the Slate of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no .rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising'out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING -TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the temis-of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modifV, amplify, or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and alTiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions'contemplated hereby.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in,blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are^ held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof. • *
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. The legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract include 2 CFR 200 as
amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 (Weatherization Assistance Prograrri),
the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program State Plan, Weatherization
Assistance Program Policies and Procedures, and Field Guide. The New Hampshire
Department of Energy (Department) reserves the right to use any legalremedy at its
disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds,
suspension of agency personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disbarment of agencies
and/or subcontractors from present or future contracts, and such other legal remedies as
determined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of Justice in the
enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the Weatherization Assistance
Program.

2. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. hereinafter "the
Contractor," agrees to provide services to implement U.S. Department of Energy's"
Weatherization Assistance Program as detailed in the scope of work.

3. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2
CFR,200, Subpart F - Audit Reiquirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of
revenues and expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the ,
Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to
choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a
response to the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all
management letters written as a result of the audit along.with the audit report shall be
forwarded to the Department within one month of the time of receipt by the Contractor
accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

4. The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

"9.4 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5,000 or less)-awarded by the
subcontractor shall allow the New Hampshire Departmerit of Energy, the U.S.
Department of Energy, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any duly
authorized representatives, access to any books, documents, papers, and records of
the subcontractor or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to the
Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of making audits, examinations,
excerpts and transcription."

5. In paragraph 10 of the general provisions, the following sentence shall be deleted: "The
form, subject matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be
identical to those of any Final Report described in EXHIBIT A."

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX; Award Date: 07/01/2025 . ^E^ibitA, B C
Weatherization Assistance Program, ALN # 81.042 Contractor InitialysJ^^-Date 4/29/2025
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. \J Page 1 of 6



6. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as,allowable under the cost,
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

7. Program, and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the
Contractor for three years froin the dale of submission of the final expenditure report or,
for awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the
quarterly or annual financial report, as stated in 2 CFR 200.334-338 - Retention »
Requirements for Records.

8. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department's indirect cost
rate is 25.1 percent.

9. Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program Manager at the Department, has been designated
with the responsibility for overseeing this contract.

10. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between
the parties that no portion of.the "Grant" funds may be.used for the purpose of obtaining
additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if authorized
under that law.

11. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed:
• Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding
Lobbying; Certification Regarding Deba'rment, Suspension and Other Responsibility
Matters;.Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance;
Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance
Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.

12. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of
$2,000.00 for construction or repair shall include a provision for compliance with
Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor
Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each Contractor, subcontractor or
subcontractor shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in
the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. .The subcontractor should report all
suspected violations to the Department.

13. PROCUREMENT. Subcontractor shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200. Subpart
D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special empha.sis
on financial procurement (2 CFR iZOO Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property
management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Property
Standards).

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025 ^ Exhibit A, B C
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14. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the State within 60 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

15. Prohibition on Boycotting Israel

For the purposes of this Section, the terms shall be defined as follows:

' "Boycotting Israel" means engaging in refusals to deal, terminating business activities, or
other similar commercial actions intended to limit commercial relations with persons
doing business in Israel or in Israeli-controlled territories when the actions are taken (1)
in compliance with or adherence to calls for a boycott of Israel other than those boycotts
to which Pub. L. No. 96- 78, § 8, 93 Stat. 522 (1979) appiies; or (2) in a manner that
discriminates on the basis of nationality, national origin, or religion that is not based on a
legitimate business reason.

If the State receives evidence that the Contractor is Boycotting Israel, the State shall
determine whether the Contractor is Boycotting Israel. A statement indicating that the
Contractor engaged in an action of Boycotting Israel or has taken any action of
Boycotting Israel at the request, in compliance with, or in furtherance of calls to boycott
Israel, may be considered as one type of evidence that the Contractor is, or has been,
participating in act of Boycotting Israel. An'exprcssive activity, alone, directed at a
specific person or a governmental action may not be considered evidence of an action of
Boycotting Israel.

A determination by the State that the Contractor is engaged in an action of Boycotting
Israel constitutes an Event of Default.

16. These provisions flow down to all sub-grantee and/or sub-contractor(s):

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025 Exhibit A, B, C
Weatherization Assistance Program, ALN # 81.042 Contractor Initials Date "4/29/2025
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Contractor agrees to perform weatherization services and all additional services and
other work necessary to provide Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) services to
eligible low income individuals in accordance with the regulations set forth by the U. S.
Department of Energy in 10 CFR 440, and in 2 CFR 200 as amended, and in accordance
with the provisions and procedures contained in the most recent New Hampshire
Weatherization Assistance Program (NH WAP) State Plan, Policies and Procedures
Manual, Field Guide, and as otherwise administered by the Department.

Periodically the Department may issUc Subcontractor Guidance (SO) and Subcontractor •
Notices (SN) or other management and/or guidance clarifications as necessaty. All such
changes'shall be considered as incorporated into the NH Weatherization Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide. The-Contractor agrees to alter the Program
procedures in accordance with a SG, SN or other instructions.

The Contractor agrees to abide by changes in the NH WAP as prepared by the
Department and further agrees to perform Weatherization Program services in a manner
that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs for
low-income households in order to provide the best services for New Hampshire's low-
income households.'

2. The contract period, to be known as Program Year 2025 (PY25), will commence on upon
approval from New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council (Governor and
Executive Council), and will have a completion date of June 30, 2026.

3. Contractor must provide the Department with a budget for the use of NH WAP funds
before any reimbursement for weatherization work will be paid by the Department.

4. In PY25, Contractor agrees to complete weatherization services on 16 dwelling units
according to the standards outlined in the most recent NH Weatherization Policies and
Procedures Manual and Field Guide.

(a) Weatherization Services are intended to increase the energy efficiency of the
home, and to improve the home's comfort and safety. A certified energy auditor
will first perform a NH WAP energy audit on the home using scientific test
equipment. Specific energy conservation measures and heating source repairs
will then be implemented in order of priority and cost effectiveness. This
integrated activity is carried out in accordance with provisions and procedures
outlined in the most recent NH Policies and Procedures Manual and Field Guide.

(b) The minimum number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended
shall conform to the provisions of this contract. Deviations of more than 20%

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025 ' Exhibit A, B, C
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from expected dwelling unit goals in any given quarter may result in a reduction
of the contract amounts and a reallocation of funds to other Contractors.

5. In accordance with the U.S. DOE's '.'Quality Work Plan" (QW?) and the provisions of
Weatherization Program Notice (WPN) 15-4 ' "
hrtps://www.cneruv.gov/eere/wap/downloads/wDn-15-4-oiialitv-work-plan-rcquircmcnt-

update") and as modified in WPN 22-4 (Weatherization Program Notice 22-4: Quality

1 Work Plan Reouirement Update I Department of Energy), beginning April 1. 2015.
Contractor must have regular and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality
Control Inspector(s), available as either staff or Contractors, able to fully function in that
capacity. This contract provides funding for continued training and technical assistance
sufficient to allow the Contractor to secure and maintain the skilled personnel necessary
to meet the requirements of WPN 15-4 and WPN 22-4.

6. All work performed under the WAP in New Hampshire, using federal money from any
WAP program year, must meet the rhinimum specifications defined in the U.S.
Department of Energy's "Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and the associated Standard Work
Specifications (SWS). Details are presented in the SWS for Home Energy Upgrades
referred to in U.S. DOE Weatherization Program Notice 15-4 and updated in
Weatherization Program Notice 22-4, as well as in the NH WAP's Field Guide, 2021
Edition, which governs how WAP energy conservation measures (ECMs) are to be
implemented. The Contractor must ensure, and be able to document for the Department,
that all staff and Contractors who perform Weatherization work in PY25 are properly
trained and certified for that work and have been informed that their work must meet the

requirements of the SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimbursement will not occur.
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the Services, the Department agrees to pay
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. in total, the sum of:

$319,110 (which hereinafter is referred to as the "Contracted Amount"), of which
S 44,957 may be expended for Administration,
$ 26,850 may be expended for Training & Technical Assistance,
$ 33,493 may be expended for Health & Safety measures,
$ 22,328 may be expended for Energy Audits,
S  11,164 may be expended for Final Inspections,
$ 39,975 may be expended for Readiness measures,
$140,343 (the balance), to be spent on weatherization activities (Program Activity) .

and;

S 28,069 will be issued as a cash advance.
\

1. Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after
written documentation of cash need is submitted to the Department. Disbursement of the
contracted amount shall be made in accordance with the procedures established by the
State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance basis; limited to minimum amounts needed;
and be timed to" be in accordance with the actual, immediate cash requirements of the
Contractor in carrying out the purpose of the program.

2. The Contractor must make timely payments to sub-contractors in accordance with the
contract provisions.

3. Contractor shall submit a payment request to the Department for each month of the
contract period. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received at the-Department
no later than the 15'^' day of each month, or the first business day following the 15'^ day.

4. Administrative costs are provided to cover a specified number of unit completions at
minimal standards. Administrative funds may be pro-rated by the Department if
production unit completions do not meet expected production goals.

5. The Department may, as a function of its administrative oversight, modify contracted
budget amounts as necessary to ensure the efficient operation of the NH WAP as long as
these modified expenditures do not exceed the Contracted Amount total as specified
above.

6. All obligations of the Departrhent, including the continuance of any payments, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of Federal funds for the
services to be provided.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisioris agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees tb have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General.Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

\  -

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations were
amended and published as Part II ofthe May 25, 1990. Federal Register fpages 21681-21691), and require .
certification by Contractors (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 30l7.63b(c) of the regulation provides that a Contractor (and by
inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department
in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when
the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of
payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using
this form should send it to: .

Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program Manager,
NewHampshireDepartmentofEnergy, 21 South Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

(b) . Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about-
.(I) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) , Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee-assistance programs; and
(4) The penalties that,may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring

in the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will-
(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(e)' Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to'every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30. calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicied-

(1) '.Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
.termination, consistent with the requirements ofthe Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain-a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (0-

(B) The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the sile(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
8 Old Suncook Road

Concord, NH 03301

Check n^f there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc

Uijon G&C approval through June 30. 2026
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certifickion

Jeanne Agri ,i Executive Director
Name and Title of Authoriz® Contractor Representative

Cont or Representati tu

4/29/2025

Date

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025
Weatherization Assistance Program, ALN # 81.042
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319ofPublic Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH ANT) HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
Weatherlzation Assistance Program
State Energy Program , . '

Contract Period: Upon G&C approval through June 30, 2026

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an o'fficer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). "

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract,'grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and subtnit Standard Form.LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify"and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this.transktion was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 135l, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subj^M^jo a civil penalty^f not less than 510,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Executive Director
Contray)r Representative aq^ature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc 4/29/2025
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Executive
Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,- Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1. II and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: ' •

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certification
(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.
(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of

participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the Department determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective
primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

(3) The certification m this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when the
Department determined to enter into this transaction, if it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the-
Federal Government, may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the Department to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded,"
as ,used in'this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Fart 76. , ' ^

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by the Department.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by the Department, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, the Department may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Deharment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(11) Theprospectiveprimary participant certifies to the best ofits knowledge and belief, that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or
a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission
of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false
statements, or receiving stolen property;

y

(c) arc not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or eivilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(12) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Deharment, Suspension, Ineligibility and • '
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier. Covered Transactions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntanly
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. '

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such prospective
participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lovver tier covered tran®ctions.

Executive Director
Contr^tor Repres^ativ^^Whmure Contractor's Representative Title

Commuhity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc 4/29/2025
Contractor Name' • • Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Executive Director

Contirattor Represeiitati\\9ugnature Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc 4/29/2025
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the' Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to, children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.

The law does not apply to children's ser\'ices provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by lyledicare
or Medicaid flinds, and portions of facilities used for inpatienfdrug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$ 1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. •

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/contractor certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/contractor further agrees that it will require the language of this-certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subcontractors shall certify
accordingly.

lor maturetativ

Executive Director
Conti^lor Representativ^Wnalure Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Prograrn Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc "4/29/2025
Contractor Name ' Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT I

U.S. Department of Energy
Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs

OMR Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any. other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. DOE , 1000 Independence Avenue, S.W.-,
Washington, DC 20585; and to the Office of Management and Budget (0MB), Paperwork Reduction Project
(1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503. .

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.. (Hereinafter called the "Contractor")
HEREBY AGREES to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 .(Pub. L. 88-352), Section 16 of the
Federal Energy Administration Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of
1974 (Pub. L. 93-438), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-
568, and Pub. L. 94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the'Age Discrimination
Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135), Title VIIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of
Energy Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as
amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above
laws and regulations issued pursuant thereto, the Contractor agrees to assure that no person in the United States .
shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from participation in, be
denied the benefits of, or be oiher\s'ise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the •
Contractor receives Federal assistance from the U.S. DOE.

Applicability and Period of Obligation '
In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assistance.extended to the Contractor by the U.S. DOE, this assurance obligates the
Contractor for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of such service,
"financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which
Federal assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the Contractor for
the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this assurance
obligates the Contractor for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Contractor by the ,
U.S. DOE.

Employment Practices

Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Contractor's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Contractor agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance

The Contractor shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, sub-grants, or
subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with
laws and regulauons cited above. .To this end, the sub-recipient shall be required to sign a written assurance form;
however, the obligation of both recipient and sub-recipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the collection
or submission of written assurance forms.
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Data Collection and Access to.Records -

The Contractor agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Contractor's receipt of Federal assistance from the U.S. DOE. Such information shall include, but is
not limited to the following: (!) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data necessary
for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited discrimination;
(2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3) data regarding
covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of
the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or understand
English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related information
adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any
person on the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national
origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integraj part of the program; and (6)
any additional written data determined by the U.S. DOE to be relevant to the obligation to assure compliance by
recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.'

The Contractor agrees to submit requested data to the U.S. DOE regarding programs and activities developed by
the Contractor from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the U.S. DOE. Facilities of the Contractor
(including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books, accounts, and other sources of
information pertinent to the Contractor's compliance with the civil rights laws shall be made available for
inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the U.S. DOE specifically
authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be provided by the Director, Office "of Civil
Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the
date hereof, to the Contractors by the U.S. DOE, including installment payments on account after such data of
application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Contractor recognizes and agrees
that such.Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements made in this
assurance, and that the United Stales shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This
assurance is binding on the Contractor, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose
signatures appear below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Contractor.

Contractor Certification

The Contractor certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Contractor upon written request
to the Department).

Representati^an^e and TideT Agri ExeCUtiVe DireCtOr
Signature: Date: 4/29/2025

Community Actron Program Belknap^errimack Counties, Inc.
8 Old Suncook Road, Concord, NH 03301
603-225-3295

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025 (\ J Exhibit I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime avvardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than S30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of 530,000 or more.
If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over 530,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporiing Suhaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department must report the following information for any subaward or contract award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award

3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / ALN program number for grants
5) Program source

6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (UEl #)
10) ' Total compensation and names of the top five executives if: ^

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues arc greater than 525M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
ofThe Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law
110-252, and 2 CFR Part* 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and
further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the
General Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the Department
and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability, and Transparency
Act.

ntractor Re ese

Jeanne Agri ■ Executive Director
j/e Signature Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc - 4/29/2025
Contractor Name Date

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX; Award Date: 07/01/2025 ^ Exhibit J
Weaiherization Assistance Program, ALN # 81.042 ■ Contractor Inili^ "Date 4/29/2025
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. f Page 1 of 2



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

, EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General-Provisions, 1 certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UE! number for your entity is: FND1A6MY3JD3

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business.or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) 525,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreernents?

NO X YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the follo>^ing:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S;C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO X YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to.#3 above is NO, please answer the following:

, 4. The names and compensation of the five most highly corhpensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

'Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:.

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025
Weatherization Assistance'Program, ALN # 81.042
Community Action Program Belknap-Meirimack Counties, Inc.

Contractor Initial

•Exhibit J

ate 4/29/2025
.  Page 2 of ,2



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT K

CERTIFICATION REGARDING BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA (Buy America) COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of the
Build America, Buy America Act (Buy America) Pub. L. No. 117-58, §§ 70901-52 under the Infrastructure
investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), Pub. L. No. 117-58, as well as the Initial Implementation Guidance on
Application ofBuy America Preference in Federal Financial Assistance Programs for Infrastructure
memorandum from the Office of Management and Budget (0MB) dated April 18, 2022, and further 0MB or
U.S. DOE guidance once issued.

Buy America seeks to strengthen Made in America Laws and bolster America's industrial base, protect national
security, and support high-paying jobs. Buy America requires that the Department and the Contractors of federal
funding shall ensure that "none of the funds made available for a Federal financial assistance program for
infrastructure, including each deficient program, may be obligated for a project unless all of the iron, steel,
manufactured products, and construction materials used in the project are produced in the United States."

Definitions:
A

Infrastructure Includes, at a minimum, the structures, facilities, and equipment for, in the United States;

•  Roads, highways,* and bridges;
•  Public transportation;
•  Dams, ports, harbors, and other maritime facilities;
•  Intercity passenger and freight railroads;
•  Freight and intermodal facilities;
•  Airports;
• Water systems, including drinking water and wastewater systems;
•  Electrical transmission facilities and systems;
•  Utilities;

•  Broadband infrastructure;

•  Buildings and real property;.and
•  Facilities that generate, transport, and distribute energy.

Further, the "infrastructure" in question must either be publicly owned or serve a public function; privately owned
infrastructure that is not open to the public, such as'a personal residence, is not considered "infrastructure" for
purposes of this requirement. In cases where the "public" nature of the infrastructure is unclear, the Contractor
should contact the Department. The Department will consult with the U.S. DOE which will render a
determination.

Project means the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of infrastructure in the United States.

Construction Materials includes an article, material, or supply - other than an item of primarily iron or steel; a
manufactured product; cement and cementitious materials; aggregates such as stone, sand, or gravel; or aggregate
binding agents or additives - that is, or consists primarily of:

•  Non-ferrous metals;
•  Plastic and polymer-based products (including polyvinylchloride, composite building materials, and

polymers used in fiber optic cables);
•  Glass (including optic glass);
•  Lumber; or

•  Drywall.

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025 . Exhibit K
Weatherization Assistance Program, ALN # 81.042 Contractor Initials>^^ Date 4/29/2025
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. V] page I of 3



"-Domestic content procurement preference means and.refers to the same thing as "Buy America Preference."
These terms mean all iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United Slates; the manufactured
products used in the project are produced in the United States; or the construction materials used injthe project are
produced in the United States.

Buy America Preference:

None of the funds provided under this grant to the Contractor may be used for a project for infrastructure unless:

1. All iron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States - this means all manufacturing
processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of.coatings, occurred in the United
States;

2. All manufacuired products used in the project arc produced in the United States - this means the
manufactured product was manufactured in the United Stales; and the cost of the components of the
manufactured product that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States is greater than 55
percent of the total cost of all components of the manufactured product, unless another standard for
determining the minimum amount of domestic content of the manufactured product has been
established under applicable law or regulation; and

3. All construction materials are manufactured in the United States - this means that all manufacturing
processes for the construction material occurred in the United States.

The Buy America Preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are consumed in, incorporated
into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to tools, equipment, and supplies, such as
temporary scaffolding, brought into the construction site and removed at or before the completion of the
infrastructure project. Nor docs a Buy America Preference apply to equipment and furnishings, such as movable
chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment, that are used at or within the finished infrastructure project but
are not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the infrastructure project.

The Contractor and its subcontractor, subgrantee, or other person, firm, or corporation, will provide the best
available documentation illustrating cornpliahce with the Buy America Preference, the Department reserves the
right to request additional information from the Contractor to further demonstrate compliance with the Buy
Arnerica preference. Compliance may be met by providing the following:

1. A written statement from the manufacturer demonstrating that the iron, steel, manufactured products, or
construction materials purchased frorn that manufacturer were produced in the United States. •

2. Photographic evidence that the iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction materials were
produced in the United States. ' • . '

3. Other documentation pre-approved by the Department.

Waivers:

When necessary, the Contractor may seek a waiver from the Buy America Preference requirements. Any issued
waiver is made by the U.S. DOE. The Contractor must contact the Department with its intent to seek a waiver
from the Buy America Preference requirements. The Department will submit the waiver request on behalf of the
Contractor to U.S. DOE. Requests to waive the'application of the Buy America Preference must be in writing.
Waiver requests are subject to public comment periods of no less than 15 days, as well as review by the 0MB.
Current timeframe estimate from request to approval is 45-60 days.

Waivers must be based on one of the following justifications:

1. Applying the Buy America Preference would be inconsistent with the public interest (Public Interest);
2. The typ>es of iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction materials are not produced in the .

United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities or of a satisfactory quality
(Nonavailability); or .

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025 A J Exhibit K
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3. The inclusion of iron, steel, manufactured products, or construction materials produced in the United
States will increase the cost of the-overall project by more than 25 percent (Unreasonable Cost).

Requests to waive the Buy America Preference must include the following:

•  Waiver type (Public Interest, Nonavailability, or Unreasonable Cost);
•  Recipient name and Unique Entity Identifier (UEI);

•  A detailed justification as to how the non-domestic item(s) is/are essential the project;
•  A certification that the Contractor made a good faith effort to solicit bids for domestic products

supported by terms included in requests for proposals, contracts, and non-proprietary communications
with potential suppliers;

•  Total estimated project cost, with estimated Federal share and recipient cost share breakdowns;
•  Total estimated infrastructure costs' with estimated Federal share and recipient cost share breakdowns;
•  A brief description of the project, its location, and the specific infrastructure involved;
•  List and description of iron or steel item(s), manufactured goods, and/or construction material(s) the

recipient seeks to waive from the Buy America Preference, including name, cost, country(ies) of origin,
and relevant PSC and NAICS codes for each;

•  A justifica'tion statement - based on one of the applicable justifications outlined above—as to why the
items in question cannot be procured domestically, including the due diligence performed (e.g., market
research,'industry outreach) by the rccipient to attempt to avoid the need for a waiver. TTiis justification
may cite, if applicable, the absence of any Buy America-compliant bids received for domestic products
in response to a solicitation; and

•  Anticipated impact to the project if no waiver is issued.

The U.S. DOE and the Department may request, and.the Contractor must provide, additional informkion for
consideration of this wavier. The U.S. DOE's final determination regarding approval or rejection of the waiver
request may not be appealed.

Conraclor Repr enta

Jeanne Agri Executive Director
Signature Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title

I

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc 4/29/2025
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

EXHIBIT L

CERTIFICATION REGARDING NHPA and NEPA COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 42 U.S.C. §4321 et seq., rules
promulgated thereunder (40 CFR.Parts 1500-1508), guidance documents issued by the Office of
Management and Budget or the U.S. DOE, the Department executed Historic Preservation
Programmatic Agreement, and U.S. DOE Office of Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy
(EERE) NEPA Determination GFO-WAP-ARLD2025A (NEPA Determination-WAP25)..

The Contractor agrees to assure compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act (NHPA) and the Department executed Historic Preservation Programmatjc
Agreement prior to authorizing the use of hands.

The Contractor agrees that it will not fund activities that are not "Allowable Activities" pursuant
to the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Determination-WAP25.

Allowable activities for WAP annual formula, Weatherization Readiness, and PVE funds
include:

1. , Administrative activities associated with management of the designated Weatherization
Office and management of programs-and strategies in support of weatherization activities.

2. Development and implementation of training programs and strategies for weatherizatiori
effort, including initial home energy audits, final inspections, and client education.

3. Purchase of vehicles and equipment needed for administrative activities, training -
activities, weatherization energy audits, installation ofmeasures indicated below, and quality
control inspections.

4. Weatherization activities, provided that projects,apply the restrictions of each State's
programmatic agreement with their-State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO), are installed in
existing buildings, are appropriately sized, and are covered by Appendix A of 10 CFR 440 .
and/or approved as part of the energy audit approval procedures and material approval process,
and limited to: .

a. Energy Conservation Measures- including purchase and installation of measures,
as applicable
i. Building Shell Measures:

1. Attic/Roof Insulation.

2. , Wall Insulation.
3. Foundation Insulation.

4. Air Sealing/Infiltration Reduction.

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025 ^ y E.xhibit L
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n.

iii.

iv.

V.

vi.

a.

5. Window replacement and treatments, such as, window film,
awnings and solar screens.

6. Door replacement and treatments such as, storm door', window
film, solar screens.

b. Mechanical Measures

i. Clean, tune, repair, or replace heating and/or cooling systems including
switching fuel source.
Install duct and distribution system insulation
Seal diicts and distribution systems
Install programmable thermostats
Repair/replace domestic water heaters, including switching fliel source.
Install domestic hot water heater tank and pipe insulation

c. Electric and Water Measures

i. Install efficient light sources
ii. Install low-flow showerheads, aerators, and toilets
iii. Replace inefficient refrigerators and freezers with energy-efficient models

5. Energy-related health and safety measures per the most recently approved U.S. DOE
Weatherization Assistance Program Guidance, currently Weatherization Program Notice (WPN)
22-7 provided that activities adhere to the requirements of the respective Recipients' U.S. DOE
executed Historic Preservation Programmatic Agreement, occur in existing buildings, and are
limited to:

Air-Conditioning, Heating Systems, and Combustion Appliances
i. Replace, repair, or install primary heating systems when existing primary

. heating systems are unsafe, inoperable, or nonexistent.
No U.S. DOE-flinded weatherization work is permitted if the completed
dwelling'unit will be heated with an unvented combustion space heater as
the primary heat source. The primary heat source must be replaced with a
vented unit prior to or by weatherization. The replacement unit must be
sized to-heat the entire dwelling iinit.
Unsafe secondary units, including space heaters, must be repaired, or
removed and disposed of, or deferral is required. Secondary unvented
space heaters are considered unsafe if they:

are not listed and labeled as meeting ANSI Z21.11.2;
have an input rating of more than 40,000 BTU/hour; or are in a
bedroom and have an input rating of more than 10,000 BTU/hour;
are in a bathroom and have an input rating of more than.6,000
BTU/hour;

are operating in an unsafe manner (e.g., high carbon monoxide
(CO) readings, too close to combustible materials, lack sufficient
combustion air volume);
or are not permitted by the Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ)

The Department's Contractors must comply with the Manufactured Home
Construction and Safety Standards which mandates that:
1. All fuel-burning appliances in manufactured homes except: ranges,

ovens, illuminating appliances,'Clothes dryers, solid fuel-burning

11.

111.

2.

3.

4.

5.

IV.

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025
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fireplaces and solid fuel burning stoves- must be installed to
provide for the complete separation of the combustion system from
the interior atmosphere of the manufactured home (i.e., to draw
their combustion air from outside), and be vented to outside the
dwelling.

2. All appliances installed by weatherization in manufactured homes
must meet these standards, including secondary heating sources.
No unvented fuel-burning space heating appliances may remain in
a MH after weatherization under any circumstances. If an occupant
will nofallow the removal of an unsafe combustion appliance from
the home, deferral is required.

3. Repair or replace combustion gas venting to ensure proper
combustion gas venting to outside the dwelling for all combustion
appliances, including but not limited to gas dryers and
refrigerators, ftimaces, vented space heaters, and water heaters.

V. If weatherization installs an appliance that is vented into'a masonry-
chimney, the chimney must be lined in compliance' with the International.
Fuel Gas Code (IFGC) or local AHJ if more stringent.

vi." Install adequate combustion air for all combustion appliances left after
weatherization.

vii. If permits are required for heating/cooling system work, they must be ^
secured and are a program operation cost if the installation is an ECM or .
may be included in the health and safety (H&S) cost if installed as a H&S
measure.

viii. If unsafe conditions relating to existing combustion appliances require
remediation to safely perform weatherization and cannot be remedied by
repair or tuning, replacement is an allowable H&S measure unless
prevented by other guidance herein..

ix. Docunrientation justifying the replacement with a cost comparison between
replacement'and repair must be maintained in the client file

X. Replace, repair, or install primary air conditioning in homes where current
occupants meet Contractor's definition of "at-risk".

xi. Minor repairs on electric space heaters '
xii. Repair or removal of primary and secondary solid fuel heating appliances.
xiii. Replacement of unsafe primary solid fuel heating appliances,

b. Asbestos '

i. When suspected friable Asbestos Containing Materials (ACM) are
present, including vermiculite, assume they contain asbestos and take
precautionary measures to prevent disturbing it during the audit and work
unless testing determines otherwise.

ii. Identifying and rnanaging suspected ACM that provides for reasonable
and necessary precautions to prevent asbestos contamination in the home.

,  iii. Addressing blower door testing where suspected friable ACM is present
(as defined by EPA), including vermiculite.

iv. Temporary removal and reinstallation of ACM siding to perform.an ECM
(e.g., wall insulation).
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V. Limited encapsulation or removal of suspected AGM on small surfaces
(pipes, ductwork, furnaces, other small, covered surfaces, etc.) by an
appropriately trained asbestos control professional if necessary to safely
weatherize the dwelling.

c. Biologicals and Unsanitary Conditions
i. Limited remediation of conditions that may lead to or promote biological

concerns and unsanitary conditions (e.g., repairing leaking sewage pipe)
ii. Limited cleaning of the workspace to protect the health and safety of

workers,, and occupants
d. Building Structure and Roofing • ,

i. Minor repairs to building structure or roofs
e. Code Compliance

i. Correction of preexisting code compliance issues triggered by
weatherization measures being installed in a specific room or area of the
home.

f. Electrical * • ,
i. .Provide sufficient overrcurrent protection and damming prior to insulating

building components containing knob and tube wiring, as required by the
AHJ.

ii. Minor electrical repairs (e.g., junction box covers, improper splices) to
•protect the occupant or workers from electrical hazards within the living
area or in the immediate area where weatherization activities will occur

g. • Fuel Leaks
i. When a gas leak is found on the utility side of service, the utility service

must be contacted, work must be temporarily halted, and the leak must be
repaired before work may proceed.

ii. Fuel leaks thai are the responsibility of the occupant (vs. the utility) must
be repaired before installing weatherization measures in the home ,

iii. Replacement or repair of leaking bulk fuel tanks and/or lines if connected
systems will remain after weatherization.

iv. Replacement of flexible appliance gas connectors that are not compliant
with current fuel gas codes

' h. Gas Ovens/Stovetops/Ranges,
i. Limited cleaning or repair of ovens/ranges/stovetops
ii. Limited replacement of unsafe gas ovens/ranges/stovetops

i. . Hazardous Materials

i. Hazardous'Waste Materials generated by weatherization work (e.g.,
refrigerant, asbestos, lead, mercury, CFL lighting bulb/ballasts,.etc.) must
be disposed of according to all local and federal laws, regulations, and
guidelines, as applicable."

ii. Limited removal of pollutants that pose a risk to workers is required (e.g.,
flammable liquids, hazardous chemicals, and other air pollutants)

iii. Limited removal of pollut^ts that pose a risk to the occupant •
J. Injury Prevendon of Occupants

i. Minor repairs and installations (e.g., repairing stairs, replacing handrails,
etc.)
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k. Lead Based Surface Coverings - . . .
i. Comply with EPA's Lead; Renovation, Repair and Painting Program

(RRP) rules when working in pre-1978 housing unless testing confirms the
work area to be lead free.

ii. Testing to determine the presence of lead on surfaces that will be disturbed
by WAP measure installation is allowed with EPA-approved testing
methods. •

1. Mold and Moisture

i. Limited water damage repairs that can be addressed by weatherization
workers are allowed when necessary to weatherize the home and to ensure
the long-term'stability and durability of the measures

ii. Spurce control (i.e., correction of moisture and mold creating conditions)
when necessary, to' weatherize the home and to ensure the long-term
stability and durability of the measures. Source control is independent of
latent damage and related repairs. Source control includes, but is not
limited to site drainage, gutters, down spouts, extensions, flashing, sump
pumps, dehumidifiers, landscape, leaking roofs, vapor retarders, moisture
barriers, etc.

iii'. Window and door repairs to resolve a bulk water intrusion issue that is ,the
cause of visible biological growth and in compliance with the most current
Incidental Repair program notice (WPN 19-5)

m. Pests -

i. Limited pest removal is allowed only where infestation would prevent
weatherization

ii. Screening of windows and points of access and incorporating pest
exclusion into air sealing practices to prevent intrusion

n. Radon

i. ■ Cover exposed dirt floors within the pressure/thermal boundary with a
sealed soil gas reiarder

ii. Cover sump well/pits with airtight covers
iii. Implement ventilation as required by ASHRAE 62.2-2016
iv. In homes where radon may be present, work scope may include additional

precautionary measures based on EPA Healthy Indoor Environment
Protocols for Home Energy Upgrades.

V. Other precautions may include, but are not limited to, sealing any
observed floor and/or foundation penetrations, isolating the basement from
the conditioned space, and ensuring crawl space venting is installed and
operable. . ^

0. Safety'Devices; Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarms, Fire Extinguishers
i. - Install CO alarms in every home where alarms are not present or are

inoperable in compliance with ASHRAE 62.2- 2016 which references
. NFPA 720 (note:'NFPA 720 has been incorporated into NFPA 72)

ii. * Install smoke alarms where the AHJ requires them if alarms are not
present or are'inoperable.

iii. Replace functional smoke alarms and'carbon monoxide alarms if they are
beyond the manufacturer's stated lifetime (usually 10 years).
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iv. Replace functional smoke or CO alarms batteries if designed to be
replaceable.

V. Provide fire extinguishers where solid fuel burning equipment is present,
p. Ventilation and' Indoor Air Quality

i. Install ventilation as required by ASHRAE 62.2 - 2016.-
q. Water Heaters

i. Limited case-by-case replacement of water heaters if the water heater
poses a life-safety risk to occupants (e.g., leaking primary tank, high CO '
measurements).

ii. Minor safety repairs of water heaters (e.g., temperature and pressure valve
piping, backflow prevention devices, expansion tanks)

iii. Replace, repair, or install primary water heater heaters when existing
primary water heater is unsafe, inoperable, or nonexistent

r. Worker Safety
i. Minor repairs and installations (e.g., repairing stairs, replacing handrails,

etc.) are allowable when necessary to safely weatherize the dwelling.
ii. Equipment purchases to protect the health and safety of the worker (e.g..

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), jobsite cleaning supplies

6. Incidental and necessary minor energy-related repairs and replacements provided that
activities adhere to the requirements of the respective Recipients' U.S. DOE executed Historic
Preservation Programmatic Agreement, occur in existing buildings, and are limited to:

a. Repair/replace damaged windows and doors
b. Minor roof repairs^ limited to replacing/fixing decking material and roof material.
c. Interior and exterior wall repairs
d. . Ceiling repairs
e. Floor repairs
f. Foundation or subspace (crawl space) repairs
g. Exterior drainage repairs limited to gutter repair or replacement, and/or grading

adjacent to the perimeter of the foundation not to extend more than 3 feet from the
foundation

h. Plumbing repairs
i. Electrical repairs

7. Installation of solar photovoltaic (PV) and solar hot water heating systems provided that
activities adhere to the requirements of the respective Recipients; U.S. DOE executed historic
Preservation Programmatic Agreement, occur in or on existing buildings, and are limited to:

a. . PV systems would be appropriately sized and would not exceed 60 kW and/or
b. Solar hot water heating systems would be appropriately sized and would not

exceed 200,000 BTU/HR

c. Systems would be roof mounted or attached to structure
d. Battery storage, if applicable, would be inside structure (e.g. inside a garage), or

attached to outside of structure

8. Allowable activities under the Weatherization Readiness Funds (WRF) are designated for
use by Contractors in addressing structural and health and safety issues. This funding is
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anticipated to reduce the frequency of deferred homes that require other services, outside the
scope of weatherization, before the weatherization measures can be installed provided that
activities adhere to the requirements of the respective Recipients' U.S. DOE executed Historic
Preservation Programmatic Agreement, are installed in or on existing buildings, and are limited
to: . . • ,

a. Repair/replace damaged windows.and doors.
b. Minor electrical and plumbing repairs.
c. Roof repairs or replacement including replacing decking material and roof, and/or

changing roof material (eig., shingles to metal).
d. Interior and exterior wall repairs.
e. Ceiling repairs.
f. Floor repairs.
g. Foundation or subspace (crawl space) repairs.
h. Exterior drainage repairs limited to gutter repair or replacement, and/or grading

adjacent to the perimeter of the foundation not to extend more than 3 feet from the
foundation. »

i.. Minor plumbing repairs,
j. Minor electrical repairs.
k. Clean-up or remediation of lead paint, asbestos (confirmed or suspected,

including vermiculite), and mold and/or moisture beyond typical scope of WAP.

No ground disturbance (beyond grading adjacent to the perimeter of the foundation not to extend
more than 3 feet from the foundation), including tree removal or tree trimming , would occur for
implementation for the above activities.

Activities not listed'above, including ground disturbing activities'(grading adjacent to the
perimeter of the foundation more than 3 feet from the foundation), and tree removal, or tree
trimming, are not included under the ALRD categorical exclusion and are subject to additional
NEPA review and approval by the Department and U.S. DOE.

Activities that do not qualify as "Allowable Activities" as defined above are subject to additional
NEPA review, which requires additional documentation and submission of an environmental
questionnaire. If the Contractor wants to fund activities that do notqualify as "Allowable
Activities," then Contractor agrees to notify the Department's WAP Administrator, and to seek
NEPA review through the Department's WAP Administrator. Activities requiring NEPA review
are not authorized for Federal funding and the Contractor may not undertake or fund those
activities unless and until the U.S. DOE Contracting Officer, through the Department WAP
Administrator, provides written authorization for those activities.

All activities related to hazardous material identified during a WAP job will be managed in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local requirements.

The Contractor agrees to document conformance with the Allowable Activities listed above
before commencement of any project.

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX; Award Date: 07/01/2025 • A I Exhibit L
Weatherization Assistance Program, ALN # 81.042 Contractor Initials \W3Date 4/29/2025
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. ~\] Page 7 of 8



The Contractor agrees to complete the online U.S. DOE training on NEPA and Historic
Preservation at wvvw.energv.gov/nodc/4816816. Proof of complete training rhust be submitted
to the Department WAP Administrator.

Executive Director
Cont^tor Repre^ent^tj^e Signature ■ Contractor's Representative Title

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc . , 4/29/2025
Contractor Name Date

U.S. DOE Award# DE-EEOOOXXXX ; Award Date: 07/01/2025
Weatherization Assistance Program, ALN # 81.042
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Contractor Initial

Exhibit L

Date 4/29/2025
Page 8 of 8



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

!. David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28. 1965. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of

State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 63021

Certificate Number: 0007155741

Bo.

€3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOih day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Christopher J. Pvles. President. Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknao-Merrimack Couritles. Inc.

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors Executive
Committee, duly called and held on March 13. 2025. at which a quorum of the Directors were
present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jiii Lesmerises, Chief Fiscal Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Christopher J. Pyles, Chair, Board of Directors are duly
authorized on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties. Inc. to enter

into contracts or agreements with Bank of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments
and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments,
and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be
desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This

authority was valid thirty (30) days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this
Certiftcate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of New Hampshire will
rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of
New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

I:Dated: Signature of Elected Officer
pher es

Title: Presiden card of Dir ors

Mailing Addfcss P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Adminiscradve Office 8 Old Suncook Road, Concord, NH
Phone; 603 225-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 TTY/TDD 1 RQO 735-2964 Fax: 603 228-1898

Website: capbm.org



/KCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

01/02/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS.
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED '
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. * • ' v .

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain'policies may require an endorsement. A statement on ̂  ,
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s). <

PRODUCER
1

Cross' Insurance-Manchester

1100 Elm Street

Manchester ' NH 03101'

contact Stephanie Peffer

(603)669-3218 (603) 645-1331

AD^ESS- roanch.cens@crossagency.com
INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAtC a

INSURER A: Selective InsuraiKe Co. of SC 19259

INSURED

Community Action Program Belknap-Merhmack Counties Inc.

P.O. Box 1016

Concord NH 03302

INSURER B: Gronite State Health Care and Human Services Self-

•NSURERC: Federal Ins Co 20281

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E: »'•

INSURER F: ■ .

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 All 2^26,WC NH REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NO"nVITHSTANOING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED*OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

UISr"
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSD

5D6R

WVD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMMIDO/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
(MMmohnrYYi LIMITS

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE | X| OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

CAMACE TO REMTEO
PREMISES (Ea occufrencal

S 2509940 10/01/2024 10/01/2025

MEO EXP (Any <m pfwi)

PERSONAL i ADV INJURY

X

GENIAGCREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY JECT LOC

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

OTHER- Professional Liability Professional Liability

1.000.000

1,000.000 J

20.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000,000

s 1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea ecckXntI

s 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per penw)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

S 2509940 10/01/2024 10/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(PeracddentI

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

OED X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
5.000.000

S 2509940 10/01/2024 10/01/2025
A<»3REGATE

5,000.000

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABILrTY

ANY PROPRIETOWPARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH) >
If yes. desolbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS t)elow

STATUTE
OTH-
ER

R01707HCHS2025-01 (3a.) NH 01/01/2025 01/01/2026
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
1,000.000

Directors & Officers Liability
J06511302 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Limit .

Deductible

1,000,000

5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101. Additional Ramarks Schedule, may Im attached if more space It required)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions. ,

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Energy ' . ' •

21 South Fruit St

Suite 10

Concord NH 03301 "

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE ' . ' _'

ACORD25 (2016/03)

e 1988:2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All lights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of February 29, 2024
and February 28, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Program of
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the
date that the consolidated financial statements are available to t^e issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that. Individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards



generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
14, 2024, on our consideration of Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Dover, New Hampshire
November 14, 2024



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLiDATEO STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

ASSETS

2024 2023

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $  786.672 S , 1,711,575

Accounts receivable 3,691.075 6,027,912

Inventory 90,873 81,569

Prepaid expenses 93.547 100,225

Investnnents 151.171 128,956

Total current assets 4,813,338 8,050,237

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and improvements 7,717,223 7,627,214

Equipment, furniture and vehicles 4,623,986 4,762,497

Construction in process - 132,920

Total property 12,341,209 12,522,631

Less accumulated depreciation 6,053.895 6,165,156

Property, net 6,287,314 6,357,475

OTHER ASSETS

Right of use asset 1,136,814 1,387,327

Cash escrov\/ and reserve funds 143,291 77,328

Tenant security deposits 8,106 8,247

Due from related party 71,660 61,348

Total other assets 1,359,871 1,534,250

TOTAL ASSETS $ 12,460,523 $ 15,941,962

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable $  111,255 ■$ 237,926
Current portion of right of use liability 311,050 461,162
Line of credit 600,083 -

Accounts payable 2,233,966 4,550,252
Accrued expenses 1,290,635 1,177,337

Refundable advances 704,973 1,817,340

Total current liabilities 5,251,962 ■ 8,244,017

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Notes payable, less current portion shown above 565,216 668,146
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above 825,764 926,165

Tenant security deposits 8,081 8,221

Total liabilities 6,651,023 9,846,549

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 5,312,618 5,433,455
With donor restrictiorts 496,882 661,958

Total net assets 5,809,500 6,095,413

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 12,460,523 $ 15,941,962

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental income

Other funds

In-kind

United Way

Interest income

Realized loss on sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Program
Management

Totalexpenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$ 26,129,332 $

125,806

3,627,514

525,485

9,128

2,703

(13.333) _

30,406,635

3,212,844

33,619,479

31,676,562
2,063,754

33,740,316

(120,837)

5,433,455

3,047,768

3,047,768

(3,212,844)

(165,076)

661,958

$ 26,129.332

125,806
6,675,282

525,485

9,128

2,703

(13,333)

33,454,403

(165,076) 33,454,403

31,676,562
2,063,754

33,740,316

(285,913)

6,095,413

$  5,312,618 $ 496,882 $ 5,809,500

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKKJAP ■ MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Rental Income

Other funds

In-kind

United Way
Interest Income

Realized loss on sale of equipment

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Program
Management

Total expenses

$  56,930.603

140,962

2,804,065

401,748

3,659

895

(36,538)

60,245,394

3,194,861

63,440,255

61,101,300
1,988,237

63,089,537

3,122,293

3,122,293

(3,194,861)

(72,568)

$  56,930,603

140,962

5,926,358

401.748

3,659

895

(36,538)

63,367,687

63,367,687

61,101,300
1,988,237

63,089,537

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

350,718

5,082,737

5,433,455 $

(72,568)

734,526

661,958 $

278,150

5,817,263

6,095,413

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024

Prooram Manaaement Total

Salaries and wages $  9,105,646 $  826,693 $ 9,932,339

Payroll taxes and benefits 2,505.764 224,252 2,730,016

Travel 259,348 11,431 270,779

Occupancy 1,462.035 67,742 1,529,777

Program services 14.707.259 - 14,707,259

Other costs:

Accounting fees 80,237 792 81,029

Legal fees 4.565 - 4,565

Supplies 195.916 40,011 235,927

Postage and shipping 46.082 - 46,082

Equipment rental and maintenance 4.780 - 4,780

Printing and publications 49.800 14,894 64,694

Conferences, conventions and meetings 18.678 - 18,678

Interest - 62,390 62,390

Insurance 137.740 45,250 182,990

Membership fees 8,955 9,815 18,770

Utility and maintenance 59,074 69,084 128,158

Computer services 58,781 - 58,781

Other 2.413.981 154,502 2,568,483
Depreciation 32,436 536,898 569,334

In-kind 525,485 - 525,485

Total functional expenses $  31,676,562 $  2,063,754 $ 33.740,316

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Prooram Manaoement Total

Salaries and wages $  8,902,376 $  841,141 $ 9,743,517

Payroll taxes and benefits 2,422,222 155,843 2,578,065

Travel 233,521 16,301 249,822

Occupancy 1,360.924 133,139 1,494,063

Program services 44,607,205 - 44,607,205

Other costs;

Accounting fees 66,194 1,959 68,153

Legal fees 24.793 268 25,061

Supplies 289.188 38,955 328,143

Postage and shipping 45.766 - 45,766

Equipment rental and maintenance 1.540 - 1,540

Printing and publications 41,775 15,970 57,745

Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,885 - 13,885

Interest 3,991 39,049 43,040

Insurance 131,454 30,788 162,242

Membership fees 13,298 10,283 23,581

Utility and maintenance 139,247 - 139,247

Computer services 71,214 • 71,214

Other 2,298,910 139,405 2,438,315

Depreciation 32,049 565,136 597,185

In-kind 401,748 - 401,748

Total functional expenses $  61,101,300 $  1,988,237 $ 63,089,537

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  (285,913) $  278,150

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation 569.334 597,185

Interest on deferred financing costs 484 483

Unrealized (gain) loss on investments (22,215) 9,837

Realized loss on sale of equipment 13,333 36,538

Decrease (increase) in current assets:

Accounts receivable 2,336,837 (783,291)

Inventory (9.304) 190,357

Prepaid expenses 6,678 (66,297)

Due from related party (10,312) 4,140

Tenant Security Deposits 141 873

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable (2,316,286) 914,597

Accrued expenses 113,298 91,130

Refundable advances (1,112,367) 279,538

Tenant Security Deposits (140) (899)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (716,432) . 1,552,341

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net borrowing (repayment) on line of credit
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cash

Cash escrow and reserve funds

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest

(512,506)

(512,506)

600,083
(230,085)

369,998

(858.940)

1,788,903

786,672

143,291

(773,876)

(773,876)

(154,350)
(309,165)

(463,515)

314.950

1,473,953

929,963 $ 1,788,903

1,711,575

77,328

929,963 $ 1,788,903

62,390 $ 43,040

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are, provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., and the following entities as Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board. All
significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from basic
consolidated financial statements.

■  Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership
■  CAP BMC Development Corporation

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

10



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are reclassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements

of activities.

The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $496,882 and $661,958 at
February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively (See Note 13).

Income Taxes

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is organized as a
nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue Service has determined them to be other
than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is subject to examinations by tax authorities for three
years.

CAP BMC Development Corporation (the Corporation) is taxed as a "C" Corporation
under the Internal Revenue Code. The Corporation accounts for deferred income taxes
under the asset and liability method in accordance with Accounting Standards
Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), "Accounting for Income Taxes". The objective of this
method is to establish deferred tax assets and liabilities for temporary differences
between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and
liabilities at the enacted tax rate expected to be in effect when such amounts are
realized or settled. ASC 740 also requires deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown
separately. There are no deferred tax assets or liabilities. The Corporation has no
federal net operating loss carryforwards available at February 29, 2024 and February
28, 2023.

Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership is taxed as a partnership. Federal income taxes are
not payable, or provided by the partnership. Earnings and losses are included in the
partners' federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the State of New Hampshire
and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in consolidated financial statements. The Organization
has analyzed its tax position taken on its income tax returns for the past three years,
and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's consolidated financial statenhents.
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rOMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated; at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-10 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with United States
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Organization considers
all liquid investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in
such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these
accounts.

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the donor for future
periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support, depending on the nature of the restriction. However, if a restriction is
fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the Organization reports
the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recogriized as
contributions in the consolidated financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

12



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

In-Kind Donations / Noncash Transactions

Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met.
This represents the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the
Organization might incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received
$525,485 and $401,748 in donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended
February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively (See Note 16).

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023 totaled $149,439
and $133,749, respectively.

Inventorv

Inventory consists of \weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts for specific purposes are
generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses and conditions are
incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash and other assets are reported
as with donor restrictions if they are received with donor imposed stipulations that limit
the use of the donated assets. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in
which the contribution is received, the Organization reports the support as without donor
restrictions.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due, and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term of
one year and are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred
to the lessee in an amount that reflects the consideration the Partnership expects to
be entitled to in exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain the lease
will be expensed as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the program services and supporting activities benefited.
Expenses are charged to each program based on the direct expenses incurred or
estimated usage based on time spent on each program by staff.

Expense Method of allocation

Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

13



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

New Accounting Pronouncement

During the year ended February 29, 2024, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2016-
13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments, as amended, which modifies the measurement of expected credit
losses on certain financial instruments. The Organization adopted this new guidance
utilizing the modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this Standard did
not have a material impact on the Organization's financial statements.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS

Accounts receivable are slated at the. amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. The Organization uses historical loss information as
the basis to determine expected credit losses for receivables and believes the
composition of receivables at year end is consistent with historical conditions. Balances
that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are
written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts
receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at

February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023. The Organization has no policy for charging
interest on overdue accounts.

3. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$704,973 and $1,817,340 as of February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively.

4. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 29, 2024
and February 28, 2023:

2024 2023

Financial assets at year end:
Cash $ 786,672 $ 1,711,575
Accounts receivable 3,691,075 6,027,912
Investments 151,171 128,956

Cash reserves 140,167 74,847
Cash escrow 3.124 2.481

Total financial assets 4.772.209 7.945.771

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 496,882 661,958
Reserve funds 140.167 74.847

Amounts not available within one year 637.049 736.805
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 4.135.160 $ 7.208.966

It is the Organization's goal to maintain*financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $5,370,000 and $10,200,000, at February 29, 2024 and
February 28, 2023 - respectively. The Organization has lines of credit with a combined
$99,917 and $700,000, available lo'borrow on at February 29, 2024 and February 28,
2023, respectively.

5. RETIREMENT PLAN

The.Organizatipn.has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers, substantially all
■  employees. The;cost of the plan js charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 29, 2024 and
February 28, 2023 totaled $212,693 and $209,878, respectively.'

,6. LEASED. FACILITIES

The right of use (ROU) asset represents the Organization's right to use underlying
assets for the lease term, and the lease liability represents the Organization's obligation
to make lease payments arising from these leases.'The ROU asset and lease liability,
all of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on the present value of
future lease payments .over the lease terms. The Organization has elected to discount
future cash flows at the risk free borrowing rates commensurate with the lease terms,
which was 1.8%. Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs' in the
accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under
FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs are incurred. The Organization's'operating
leases are described below.

The weighted average lease term at February 29, 2024 is 7.82 years. The weighted
average discount rate at February 29, 2024 is 1.80%.

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month'to ten
years.. For the year ended February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, the annual lease
expense for the leased facilities was $637,428 and $586,539, respectively.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

The approximate future minimum lease payments as of February 29, 2024 on the above
leases are as follows;

Year Ended Amount

' 2025 ' $ 329,677

2026 129,652
2027 111,327
2028 95,857

2029 ■ 95,857

Thereafter 466.548

1,228,918

Less imputed interest 92.104

Total S 1.136.814

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have' earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $701,231 and'$691,684 at
February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively. ,The policy allows for a
maximum of 50 days to be carried over to the next fiscal year, however, upon
termination only two weeks will be paid out. The two week liability is $304,049 and
$285,599 at February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
.  bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments based

on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (8.50% and 7.75% at February 29, 2024 and
February 28, 2023, respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is
secured by all the Organization's assets. There was a balance of-$101,500 outstanding
at February 29, 2024. There was no balance outstanding at February 28, 2023.

The Organization has a $500,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable.interest payments based
oh the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (8.50% and 7.75% at February 29, 2024 and
February 28, 2023, respectively). The line is secured by all the Organization's assets.
There was a balance of $498,583 outstanding at February 29, 2024.- There was no
balance outstanding at February 28, 2023.

Subsequent to year end, the" $200,000 line increased to $500,000.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

A  ' ' f

9. . CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended February 29, ■2024, approximately $15,400,000 (46%), and
$7,000,000 (21%), of the Organization's total revenue was received from the
Department of Health and Human'Services and the Department of.Agriculture. For the
year ended February ,28, '2023, $18,300,000 (29%), and $32,000,000 (51%), of the
Organization's total revenue was received from the Department of Health and Human
Services and the Department of Treasury, respectively. The future scale and nature of
the Organization is dependent upon continued support from these departments'

10. - LONG TERM DEBT
Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 29, 2024 and February 28,

■2023: ' ' . . .

2024 ' 2023

5.50% note payable to a financial institution in '
monthly installments for principal and ' interest of !
$1,634 through July 2039. The note is secured by ,
property of the Organization. $ 202,481 $ 210,560

5.75% .note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of , '
$13,912. The note was paid in full during the year
ended February 29,2024. - 71,040

3.00% note payable to the .City of Concord for
.  leasehold improvements in monthly installments for ^

principal and interest of $747 through-May 2027. The
note is secured byproperty of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 27,164 35,179

7.00%^ note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start. * ^ 5,016 65,076

1.00% Paycheck Protection Program loan payable to.
a.bank in monthly installments for principal;and
interest of $7,511 through April 2025. ' . ' 106,604 187,615
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

.  ■ t '

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Non-interest bearing note payable by Sandy Ledge j
Limited " Partnership to New Hampshire ̂  Housing !
deferred until ̂ June 1, 2034 or until the project is sold |
or refinanced or surplus cash is available. The note is f ,
collateralized by a rnortgage on real estate. 340.042 341.922

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing cost 6|8T,307 911,392

Unamortized deferred financing costs 1(4.8361 (5.3201
:  4- ' i

676,471 - 906.072
Less amounts due within one year ill 1.255 237.926

Long term portion $ 565.216 $ 668.146
1

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 29, 2024 were as follows:

. 1
, Year Ending Amount

I

'  2025 *$ ■ 111.255
2026 , 27,000
2027 18,294 .
2028 IT. 767
2029- ' 10,640

Thereafter 502.351

$  681.307
1

11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following "as of February 29, 2024 and
February 28.2023: ' , ^ "

2024 2023

\

Land ; . $ 27;9,340 $ • 279,340
Building and improvements 7,437,883 " 7,347,874
Equipment and' vehicles 4,623,986 • ' 4,762,497
Construction.in process . j 132.920

■  '• r

12,34^,209 12,522,631
Less accumulated depreciation 6.053.895 6.165.156

Property and equipment, net S 6:287.314 $ 6.357.475
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

•  ' \ ^ i

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023
totaled $569,334 and $597,185, respectively. i . '

12. CONTINGENCIES ) '
The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a'certain period and for
purposes specified by,the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance .with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to -repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 29,2024. ^ .

13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

":'Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023:

'
!' * ••

2024 •  2023

NH Food Pantry Coalition $ ,  663 $  663

Senior center 138,549 142,251

. Elder services Ho.tis 143,046

Mary Gale , - 38,130

Summer feeding 14,488 20.503

Caring fund .8,793 8,793

Agency - FAR > 50,550 60,913

Agency Head Start 153,780 177,872
'  Agency-FP/PN 69,329 69,329

Fundraising 46,999

Other programs and fundraising 3.016 458

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ ' 496.882 $  661.958
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023 .
i

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ̂

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party ; Function

Belmont Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc., . HUD Property
Alton Housing for the Elderly, Inc. 'HUD Property
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc. iHUD'Property
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Kearsarge Elderly Housing, Inc. HUD Property
Riverside Housing Corporation ' HUD Property
Twin Rivers Community Corporation ■ Property Development
TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Property

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties), HUD compliance .(for the].HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The amount due from the related parties for operating activities (collectively) at February
29, 2024 and February 28, 2023 was $335,878 and $268,293, respectively, and is

' included in accounts receivables. » '

r

15. . FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-ifprogram in certain mutual funds. The fair yaiue of the mutual funds
totaled $151,171 and $128,956 at February 29, 2024' and February 28,' 2023,
respectively.

ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather'than an entry price, establishes a'framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for 'measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows: . '
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

.  j • -

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

■ FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2023

Level 1 - Inputs to.the valuation methodology are quoted pVices available in ■ %
' active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market-
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies. . . '

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unbbservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the' asset or liability ;
and the reporting eritity makes estimates and assumptioris related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk

At February 29, 2024 and February 28, 2023, the Organization's investments were
classified as Level 1 and were based on fair value..

Fair Value Measuremerits using Significant Observable Inputs fLevel 1)

2024 2023

I

Beginning balance - mutual funds $ 128;956 $. 138,793
Total gains - mutual funds- 22.215 (9.837)

I

Ending balance - mutual funds S 151.171 S 128.956

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of .those instruments.

16. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS/SERVICES ^ ,
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according to the accounting
policies described in Note 1.

The fair value of gifts in kind included contributions in the financial statements and the
corresponding program expenses for the year ended February 29, 2024 and February
28,2023, is as follows: : " '

2024 2^
p  I

Volunteer hours •

Head'Start and Early Head Start $ 263,727 $ 11.7,171
SCSEP ■ 13,852 88,700

Rerttal space 173,339 -146,026
Advertising 63,050 15,960
Donated goods ^ , 11.517 33.891

Total $ 525.485 £ 401.748
r
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024 AND FEBRUARY 28. 2Q23

17. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The Organization experienced a decrease in several financial indicators during the year ended
February 28, 2024. These included but are not limited to a decrease in cash, loss from
operations and cash used in operating activities.

Management has been actively working on improving the financial position of the Organization.
Management has reduced indirect staff positions, reduced vacancies in the housing entities,
reduced square footage of rental space and is meeting monthly to review budgets and cut costs.

Management is confident that their efforts will improve the financial position over the next year.

18. RECLASSIFICATION

Cerlain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

•p*

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through November 14, 2024, the
date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors' Report)
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES iKin

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 29. 2024

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belkriap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. uhder'programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 29, 2024. The. information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform ,Administrative ' Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community. Action Prograrri
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organization. '

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
, accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are liniited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the.
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected to use
the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate, allowed under .the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in

-  \commodities received and disbursed.
the Schedule at the fair value of the
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON .

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors .

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards/\ssue6 by the Comptroller General of .the United States,* the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position.as of February 29, 2024, and
the related statements of'activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated November 14, 2024. '

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for- designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing'our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Corhmunity Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action. Program Belknap-fl'lerrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or erriployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. 'A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal contrpi, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatemenl of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a tirhely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration, of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Corrimunity Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free, from material misstatement, ̂
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of; laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government'Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, in considering the
Organization!s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
November 14, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE ̂

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s conipliance
with the types of .compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 29, 2024.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified ,in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

A

In our opinion, Community Action.Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended^February
29,.2024. '

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing; standards- generally
accepted in the , United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost'Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the aUdit evidence we .have obtained is
sufficient .and appropriate to provide a .basis for our opinion.on compliance for each' major
federal program.* Our audit does not provide a legal determination of-Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for.the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws,, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements, applicable to Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack 'Counties, Inc.'s
federal programs. >

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

' Our objectives are to^ obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s
corripliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordarice
with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when' it exists. The risk of not:detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Noncompliance 'with the compliance requirements referred .to above is
considered material if there is a'substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made by a'reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community Action . Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with " the
requirements of each major federal-program as a whole.

/  *

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due, to fraud or error,
,  and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures

include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to, above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

, the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance,-but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

A

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow-management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to preyept, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that' there is a reasonable possibility that material,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal .control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in Internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. 'Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal coptrol over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that have
not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal-control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. ' ■ • . .

Dover, New Hampshire
November 14, 2024
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC. ,

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2024

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS "

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties; Inc. were prepared 'in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. No significant deficiencies relating t9 the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and.on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and'
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include: U.S. Department of the Treasury,
Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023, U.S. Department of Health and
Human .Services, Low Income ,Home Energy Assistance Program, ALN 93.568, U.S.
Department of Agriculture, Food Distribution Cluster, ALN 10.565, 10.568, 10.569, U.S.
Department of Energy, Weatherizalion Assistance for Low Income Persons, ALN 81.042.

8. The threshold for distinguishing TypeA and B programs was $864,306.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to be a low-
risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None ' '' .

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ■ MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Effective 3/2025

¥
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. ̂
EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chris Pyles, Chair
Board member since: 1/14/2021'

♦

Sara A. Lewko

Board member since: 2/21/2001

Safiya Wazir, Vice Chair
Board member since: 11/2/2016

Nancy Mayville
Board member since: 3/13/2025

A. Bruce Carri, Treasurer
Board member since: 3/12/2020

Ashley Reed
Board member since: 5/'l 2/2022

Dennis Martino, Secretary
Board member since: 2/24/2005

David Siff, Esq.
Board member since: 10/2/2013

Heather Brown

Board member since: 1/15/2009
Tracy Vergason
Board member since; 5/12/2022

David Croft

Board rriember since: 5/13/2021

Current fiscal year (3/1/25 - 2/28/26) board meetings- 3/13/25, 5/8/25, 9/11/25,11/13/25,1/8/26
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Contractor Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERiSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement;

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties Inc;

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Jeanne Agti Chief Executive Officer ,. ' - $0.00 $145,916.00

Michael Tabory Chief Operating Officer $0.00 '  $119,900.00

Jill Lesmerises Chief Fiscal Officer $0.00 $108,927.00

Ken Boyer
Director Housing Rehabilitation & Energy
Consen/ation

$36,010.00 $88,495.00

-  '



Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Versatile and experienced leader with highly developed communicarion skills: written, verbal and presentarionol. Adept
in coaching and mentoring employees and colleagues as evidenced by my selection by the National OtFice of Head Start to
serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous improvetnent ofactivities to ensure they meet
outcomes approved by the board through sti-ategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with ail

local, state and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Chief. Executive Officer ' 2018-present .

Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
the Agencies overall mission • - .
Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and financial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and

. that all program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.
Provide leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board
Establish sound working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations '
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs.
See that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director 2016-2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings ofChild Development, Women Infant and Children, and •
Literacy Programs, as well as development ofan agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement dep'artmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement ofrequired staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

•  Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director

•  Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational
plans '

Director of Child Development Programs • 2001 -2016
•  Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center'

Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff
•  Provide'coaching, and learning opportunities for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and

improving early development ofchildreh.from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices . , •

•  Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

•  Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance witH Head Start Performance Standards
Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program^
Including education, health, mental health, social services, parent'involvement, nutrition, disabilities , and
transportation



•  Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component
budgets; identification and-interpretation of Head Start and community heeds; conformance to the
'Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements " ' '

•  Work in partnership with internal departments to support project goals and meet customerexpectations
•  Establish and maintain relationships and collaborations with public school districts, systems of higher

education, and other community agencies and partners '

•  Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in.
compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention to inclusive practices and
integration of component areas;'encourage continuous improvement of systems.

Quality Assurance Director/Co-Directorfor Child Development Programs 1999-2001
•  'Established and managed a robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defmed results, .

milestones, and targets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices
•  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
•  ' Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monitoring cornpliance throughout

program operations
•  Developed and implements a written quality,assurance and performance evaluation plan in conjunction with

Governing Board, Policy Council
Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in meaningful oral or written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager/Education Manager 1997-1999
Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers
Coordinate personal, and professional development and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff
progress towards educational requirements as supported by the Perfo'rmance Standards

•  Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance'
Improvement Plans when warranted.

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager ' 1995 -1997
♦, Supervised, mentored, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff
•  Communicated areas of performance improvement to staff and promote training that reflected individual

needs of staff members and the team as a whole

Ensure program compliance with codes of stale and local licensing agencies.and grant requirements

New Hampshire Technical College, Nashua, NH ' ,
Instructor ' ' . ' 1995-1997

•  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum development for Early Childhood
Education Program

•  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
•  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students

Modified, where applicable, instructional methods and strategies to meet diverse student needs
*

EDUCATION '

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration ' ^June2017

Notre Dame College; Manchester, NH
Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education 1981



MICHAEL TABORY

-i SUMMARY OP QUAUFICAIldNS

Over 20 years of demonstrated leadership in non-profit, corporate, and consulting management and
supervisory roles, including Human Resources, Information Management & Technology Infrastructure,
Project Management, Operations Management, and Sales & Marketing Management.

HIGHLIGHTS •

■  Strong decision making and multi-tasking ■ Strong analytic^ and problem solving skills,
skills in a dynamic business environment. ■ Demonstrated skills in business process

■  Effective utilizing a Strength Based approach an^ysis, requirements definition and project
to leadership and management through the scoping for software solutions and
identification of strengths, qualities and skills implementation.
of individuals. • Proven experience m^aging compliance with

•  Excellent verbal and written communications Federal and State program reflations,
skills in a business environment. ■ Open minded, with a positive attitude.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE .

COMMTJNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

PO Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 October 2018 - Present
Chief Operating Officer • '
•  Assists the Chief Executive Officer in the financial management, operations management and

execution of the mission of Community Action Program Belkhap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
■  Works closely with the Chief Executive Officer and in partnership with the entire staff, to ensure

the smooth operation of the organization's key day-to-day functions.
■  Oversees the personnel structure of the Agency and ensures compliance with federal, state and local

laws and regulations and agency,personnel policies.
■  Develops collaborative professional relationships with other Agency staff, community-based

providers and regulatory/funding sources.
■  Performs program oversight ̂ d management, including interviewing, hiring, scheduling, training,

supervising, evaluating ̂ d developing subordinate staff, and resolving employee probleihs; assigns.
tasks to maximize individual and team performance; ensures compliance with Agency policies and
procedures-.

■  Provides oversight and leadership of Agency technology infrastructure, and works with Chief
Executive Officer to develop facilities grown

■  Assists Board of Director subcommittees with their role in planning, monitoring and evaluating the
Agency's programs.

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES .

PO Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108 August 2006 - October 2018
Human Resources Directot (March 2009-October 2018)
•  Manage all agericy Human Resource office functions.
■  Responsible for ensuring compliance with all Federal and NH State labor law, including but not

limited to ADA, FMLA, FLSA, Anti-Discrimination, wage, and hour.
•  Work with leadership team in the ongoing development, review and revision of agency Personnel

Policies.



•  Provide leadership, guidance, and training to agency directors, managers and supervisors
regarding hiring, performance management, disciplinary action and employment termination.

•  Recommend and assist in coordination of technology infrastructure, including mission critical
information management software solutions, telecommunications, and connectivity. •

•  Introduced and led the implementation process of migrating the agency's Human Resource.
Management and Payroll to a cloud based solution.

•  Defined, designed and led the implementation of the agency intranet (iNet). Maintain content of
iNet and provide technical support to agency website content and site maintenance. '

■  Coordinate purchase requisition and receiving for all agency technology purchases including '
computers;' tablets, software, and printers -to ensure consistency and compatibility of products

•  placed on our network, and support by MIS department.
■  Participate in agency insurance renewal decisions and maintenance, including Health, Vision, •

Dental; Property and Casualty, Directors and Officers, Workers Compensation.
■  Act as Safety Coordinator in conjunction with the agency Joint Loss Committee. .
WIA Quality Assurance Manager and Statewide MonitorYAu^ust 2006 - March 2009)

■  'Responsible for reviewing and ensuring eligibility and federal compliance of all WlOA participants.
■  Provide eligibility and data validation training to all WIA staff.

■  Maintain WIA Operations Manual. • - "
•  Contribute and review program grant submissions.
•  Responsible for on-site program monitoring of all WIA Career Navigators statewide including

subcontracted CAP agencies to ensure program compliance with federal regulations.

THE WILLIAM PALMER HOMESTEAD GROUP

PO Box 916, Milton, NH 03851 ; ' ' November 2001 - August 2006
Owner/Independent Consultant

■  Database and Website architecbjre, design, development, and maintenance.

Small and large scale Project Management.
•  Office workflow analysis.

■  Graphic Design and Marketing Support.

CHORUSAMERICA. LLC "

650 Islington Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801 April 2001 - October 2001

Project Manager/Consultant & Business Development Manager
Responsible for all aspects of planning and managing implementation of eBusiness solutions for
Fortune 1000 companies, including resource allocation, budgeting, and time management.

■  Responsible for working with clients and developers to define Design Specifications, Project Scope,
and Project Plans.

•  .Define Marketing campaigns; produce marketing collateral and customer comrnuhications,
" presentations and corporate message. ' •

PREFERRED CAPITAL CORPORATION

100 Main Street, Suite 150, Dover, NH 03820 March 1998 - January 2001

Credit Manager / Human Resources Manager / MIS'Manager
•  Define and implement credit department policies and procedures for the New Hampshire office.

■  Responsible for relationship and communication with national funding sources.
•  Responsible for recruiting, interviewing, hiring, discipline and morale of.office personnel.

■  Responsible for definition, and enforcement of company policies and overall office operations.
■  Ensure smooth operation of office technology including, network, phone system, and end user

support.

•  Provide Marketing .Creative, Collateral and Support, Sales Statistics and Analysis.

CABLETRON SYSTEMS. INC.

35 Industrial Way, Rochester, NH 03867 February 1992 - March l996

SPECTRUM International Partners Program Manager'
■  Provide marketing support and recruit new network technology manufacturers and vendors for •

product integration with Cabletron's SPECTRUM. . ' '
•  Responsible for marketing and managing the Partners Program and its staff.

Software Engineer



■  . Responsibilities include technical leadership and project coordination in multi-engineer and cross-
departmental projects. , •' '

•  Responsible for all phases of development of mission critical information m^agement
applications.

1

ADDiriONAL EXPERIENCE
■ ^ Town of Milton NH Zoning Board of Adjustment - Chairperson.
■  Town of Milton NH Planning Board - Chairperson.
•  Friends of the Milton Free ̂ blic Library (non-profit organization) - Chairperson.
•  Over 10 years of customer service and sales experience and over 3 years of sales leadership.

•  Landlord - owner-occupied three-unit historic residence.
■ . Greyhound Pets of America - volunteer and foster home. . •

EDUCATION
•  K ' '

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY ^

Portsmouth, NH - MBA coursework

UNiyERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Durham, NH • Bachelor of Science - Computer Science 1991

UNIVERSITY OF LANCASTER .

^ncaster, Lancashire, England • Computer Science - 1987-1988



Lesmerises

Profile

Experienced and self-motivated Accounting Professional bringing forth over 30 years of
valuable progressive non-profit experience. Looking for an opportunity to use my non-profit
experience to help guide an organization. Areas of experience range from cash m^anagement,
bank reconciliations, accounts receivable, fixed assets, accounts payable, payroll, audit
preparation,.budget preparation, monitoring subrecipients, 403B pension compliance and audit
preparation, employee benefits, and system implementations.

Employment Experience

10/21 - Present

Chief Fiscal Officer. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

CAPBM is a not-for-profit with 25 million in revenue with 11 legal entities. The Agency has over 300
employees and holds 8 million in assets. ^

Oversee the daily activities of 6 fiscal staff, conduct budget meetings, prepare work papers for annual
audit for agency and 10 housing projects, manage the daily cash flow of the agency and 10 housing
projects, prepare paperwork for monitorings conducted by various funding sources, and review
accounts payable input, journal entries, accounts receivable input, and monthly billings.

10/17-12/21

Senior Accountant. Southern-New Hampshire Services. Inc.-

Southern New Hampshire Services is a not-for-profit with 49 million in revenue vvith 30 legal
entities. The Agency has over 400 employees and holds 84 million in assets.

Conduct monthly budget meetings, bill funding.sources monthly, prepare work papers for
annual audit, monitor subrecipients, prepare paperwork for monitoring conducted by various
funding sources, review accounts payable input and manage daily workflow, provide backup for
accounts payable and fuel assistance payable positions, prepare surveys for various '
governmental agencies, prepare ACA forms, prepare paperwork for 403B annual audit and file



5500, member and secretary of the 403B Committee, instrumental in getting PaperSave up and
running within the Fiscal Department, prepare work papers for 26 housing programs

n/02-10/17 , . .

Staff Accountant. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

At the time of my employment, Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties was a not-for-
profit with 20 million In revenue! The Agency had over 479 employees and held over 7 million In assets.

/

Reconciled 36.bank accounts, billed funding sources monthly, prepared work papers for annual
audit, prepared paperwork for rnonitoring by various funding sources, prepared and entered

journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, reviewed daily accounts payable input,
entered cash receipts in A/R systern, provided backup for both payroll and accounts
payable/receivable positions, managed daily workflow, and trained new accounting staff
members ' .

1/00-9/02

Account Supervisor (for 2 Companies). Whole Life. Inc.

Whole Life, Inc. Is a not-for-profit with 6 million in revenue. The Agency had over 140 employees and
held over 4 million in assets. ' , ■

Prepared monthly and quarterly reports, yearly budgets, monthly invoices, work papers, and
cost reports, prepared and entered journal entries, reconciled general ledger accounts, and
billed Medicaid ' • '

9/98-1/00

Account Receivable Clerk (for 4 Companies). CSN Financial. Inc.

Coded cash receipts, prepared monthly invoices, and prepared accounts receivable and
revenue, work papers

I

5/93 - 9/98

Assistant Controller. Biosvstems. Inc. > .

Collected past due accounts receivable both foreign and domestic, provided switchboard relief,
handled petty cash funds, audited salesmen expenses, cut accounts payable checks, prepared

journal entries, performed payroll functions



3/88-5/93

Business Officer. The Caring Community of Connecticut. Inc.

The Garing CommunitY of Connecticut is a not-for-profit with 18 million in revenue.

Ariswered phones, filed correspondence, handled petty cash funds, typed correspondence,

coded cash receipts and disbursernents, reconciled bank accounts, screened job applicants,

prepared work papers, and participated in administrator on-call program

Educational Background

1996-2000

Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Eastern Connecticut State University >

Graduated cum laude '

1992-1996

Associate Degree in Accounting, Three.Rivers Community Technical College

Named to Dean's list; graduated .with high honors

■1981-1985 . .

Merrimack Valley High School
Member of'National Honor Society, named to Honor Roll for 3 years

Volunteer Work

1/17-Present
Director on The Loudon Communications Council

Council is responsible for the distribution of a monthly newspaper to the residents of Loudon
and to rnaintain the Town of Loudon NH website. Also served as Treasurer of the Council for 2
years.



CONTACT KENNETH BOYER
ENERGY EFFICIENCY 8 QUALITY CONTROL PROFESSIONAL

PROFILE

EDUCATION

MANCHESTER COMMUNITY

COLLEGE 2006-2008

• Associates in Applied Science

In Building Construction

Technology

CERTIFICATIONS

• OSHA 10-Hour Construction

Safety and Health

• OSHA 30-HOUR Construction

Safety and Health

• BPI Building Analyst-Technician

• BPI Building Analyst-Professional

• BPI Heating Professional

• BPI HEP Energy Auditor

• BPI HEP Quality Control Inspector

• EPA/HUD RRP Certified Renovator

• NREL Multifamily Quality Control

Inspector

• Class 3 Forklift

SKILLS

Leadership

Training and mentoring new hires

Project Management

Effective Communication

Teamwork

Energy Auditing

Quality Control professional

Proficient in Microsoft Suite

Data tracking and data entry

Creating and maintaining vendor

relationships and contracts

Motivated and energetic Weatherization professional with 13. years'

experience in improving energy efficiency jn homes of all income levels,

schools, businesses, etc.

Dependable and outgoing, I am a trusted project and team leader with a

commitment to growth and accountability through exemplary leadership that

align with the company's goals and objectives..

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program, Belknap-Merrimack,

Concord, NH
2019-PRESENT

Energy Auditor and Quality Control Inpsector

•  Lead and manage 30+ client projects focused on energy efficiency in
their homes

• Maintain files and complete data entry using TREAT. .ASHRAE 62.2

and Compass (modeling, ventilation and CRM software)
Establishing and maintaining strong relationships within the

Weatherization and Community Action network

• Quality Control Inspector, Inspection of completed installation and

client files within the agency to ensure adherence to DOE and utility '

funding requirements

•  Review, collection and submission of contractor and vendor Invoices

• Train and mentor new staff

Turn Cycle Solutions LLC, Nashua, NH
Marketing Manager 8 Specialist

2018-2019

•  Acquired BPI Building Analyst Certification; performed energy audits

throughout NH within the NHSaves Weatherization Program

'  Vast knowledge of rebates and incentives available to residents in the state

•  Estimated project cost as well as annual savings in both energy" and

energy expenses

• Managed scheduling," including audits, follow-up appointments and
inspections

• Supervised and trained Weatherization installers

• • Oversaw other duties as assigned, including but not limited to, material

inventory maintenance, client intakes, field work, networking and outreach

and fleet maintenance

Energy Efficient Investments, Merrimack NH 2012-2018
Weatherization Tech

•  Project leader and team member of insulation projects varying in single

family homes, to multifamily homes and commercial dwellings

• Proficient In door and window treatment and the installation of 2-part spray

foam. 1 -part spray foam, fiberglass and cellulose insulation

• Ability to perform, lead and train others in cellulose preparation and
Installation, ventilation, various air-sealing methods, suspended ceilings
and jobsite professionalism


